
CITY OF NORTH POLE
Regular Meeting October 07, 2019

North Pole Council Chambers
125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska

www.northpolealaska.com

Monday, October 07, 2019
Committee of the Whole: 6:30 p.m.

Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 p.m.

MAYOR CITY CLERK
Michael Welch Judy Binkley
488-8584 488-8583

COUNCIL MEMBERS
Doug Isaacson – Mayor Pro Tem 322-3133
Avery Thompson – Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 388-5351
Perry Walley – Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem 347-0135
DeJohn Cromer 347-2808
Aino Welch 488-5834
David Skipps 750-5106

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag

3. Invocation

4. Approval of the Agenda

5. Approval of the Minutes

a. September 16, 2019 (page 3)

6. Communications from the Mayor

a. September 2019 NPHS Student of the Month (page 9)

7. Council Member Questions of the Mayor

8. Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City Clerk

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 1 of 73



9. Ongoing Projects Report

10. Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen)

11. Old Business

12. New Business

a. Request for Approval to Accept the 2018 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance
Grant Funds in the Amount of $95,064.00. (page 10)

b. Request for Approval to Award the 2020 Heating Fuel Contract to Alaska Petroleum
as the Lowest Cost Responsive Bidder.  Should Alaska Petroleum Not Be Able to
Fulfill Its Obligations as Listed in the Invitation to Bid, Award the 2020 Heating Fuel
Contract to Alaska Fuel Services, the Next Lowest Responsive Bidder.  Should Alaska
Fuel Services Not Be Able to Fulfill Its Obligations as Stated in the Invitation to Bid,
Award the 2020 Heating Fuel Contract to Alaska Aerofuel as the Next Lowest
Responsive Bidder. (page 43)

c. Request for Approval of the SHSP 2019 DHS Grant in the Amount of $18,344.00.
(page 52)

d. New Hire Wage Consideration for NPPD.
e. Request for Approval to Forward the Balance of the Ice Rink Fund to the Fairbanks

North Star Borough to Renovate the North Pole High School Ice Rink. (page 65)
f. Ordinance 19-18, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska Amending Title 4,

Chapter 08.050 Sales Tax Code to Collect Sales Tax From Online Retailers. (page 66)
g. Ordinance 19-19, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska Amending Title 10,

Chapter 10.02.100 Release of Motor Vehicle – Costs. (page 69)
h. Request to Approve the Re-Appointment of Mike Miller to the IGU Board for a 3

(three) Year Term Effective January 01, 2020. (page 71)
i. Request to Approve the Appointment of Rolando Miranda to the FNSB Planning

Commission. (page 72)

13. Council Comments

14. Adjournment

Detailed information and copies of agenda documents may be obtained at the Office of the City Clerk, 
125 Snowman Lane or on the City website www.northpolealaska.com .  Notice of Council Action is 
available at City Hall and on the City website following the meeting.  Council Meetings are aired live 
via audio streaming from the City’s website.  Inquiries concerning ADA compliance or 
accommodations should be directed to the City Clerk.  

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 2 of 73



Dr
aft

1 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 16, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 16, 2019 

NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
125 SNOWMAN LANE, NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Mayor Pro Tem Doug Isaacson called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, September 
16, 2019 to order at 7:00 p.m with the following Council Members in attendance: 

Council Members Present: Avery Thompson, Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Perry Walley, Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem 
Aino Welch
David Skipps 
DeJohn Cromer 

Council Members Excused: Michael Welch, Mayor

Also Present: Judy Binkley, City Clerk/HR Manager
William Butler, Director of City Services
Tricia Fogarty, Chief Financial Officer
Steve Dutra, Police Chief
Geoff Coon, Fire Chief

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG
Mayor Pro Tem Isaacson asked everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

INVOCATION
The Invocation was given by City Council Member Walley. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. Thompson moved to approve the agenda of September 16, 2019. 

Seconded by Mr. Skipps.

Discussion
Mr. Thompson moved to consent the following items: 

Old Business:

a. Ordinance 19-16, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Amend the 2019
Public Works and Utility Operating Budgets and Other Funds.

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 3 of 73



Dr
aft

2 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 16, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes 

b. Ordinance 19-17, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska Amending Title 4, 
Chapter 10.

New Business:

a. Request to Accept the Recommendation to Renew the Snow Plowing Contract with 
Hubbard Excavation for the 2019-2020 Snow Removal Season. 

Seconded by Mr. Skipps

Discussion 
None  

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO AMEND THE AGENDA OF 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2019 AS FOLLOWS:

  YES: 6 – Skipps, Thompson, Isaacson, Cromer, Walley, Welch   
  NO:    
  ABSTAIN:  
  Mayor Pro Tem Isaacson declared the MOTION CARRIED

Discussion on the agenda as amended 
None  

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE AMENDED 
AGENDA OF SEPTEMBER 16, 2019 AS FOLLOWS:

YES: 6 – Skipps, Thompson, Isaacson, Cromer, Walley, Welch   
  NO:    
  ABSTAIN:  
  Mayor Pro Tem Isaacson declared the MOTION CARRIED

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Mr. Thompson moved to approve the Minutes of September 03, 2019. 

Seconded by Ms. Welch.

Discussion
None 

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF 
SEPTEMBER 03, 2019 AS FOLLOWS:

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 4 of 73



Dr
aft

3 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 16, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes 

YES: 6 – Skipps, Thompson, Isaacson, Cromer, Walley, Welch   
  NO:    
  ABSTAIN:  
  Mayor Pro Tem Isaacson declared the MOTION CARRIED

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
None 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR
None 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 
REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK

Fire Department, Chief Coon 
New Command Vehicle that was approved is still on hold due to lack of availability. 
Motocross is finished for the year. 
The Engineer position has closed and we have five applicants.  Three in-house and two 
new members.
I attended the Regional Emergency Services Advisory Committee (RESAC) meeting on 
August 28th.  This committee is looking at how to improve services at no additional cost.  
I gave a brief description on the level of service that the North Pole Fire Department 
gives to the Borough.  I sent each committee member an email and attached my contact 
info should the committee have any questions. 
Training: 

o FF-1 is ongoing. 
o Our EMS calendar is out and our members are signing up now. 
o The EMS symposium is in Anchorage this year and we will send several of our 

medics down to training. 
Maintenance Report:

o The forced air furnaces in the Annex will be replaced next week.  This was 
approved by Council a few months ago. 

o The industry standard is to replace fire engines every 20 years.  The NPFD would 
like to remove first out engines at 20 years and replace before 30 years. 

Police Department, Chief Dutra (Audio 5:04) 
Swearing in Sgt. Smith – started December 2010 as Reserve Officer.  Hired February 
2011.
Stats – declining numbers. 
We have finished draft scoping document for the legislative grant for the interior training 
facility.

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 5 of 73



Dr
aft

4 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 16, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Escorts for Striker leaving for deployment. 
Guys Read – Midnight Sun.  I will be reading at NPE and Midnight Sun again this week. 
Pizza with a PoPo.
WatchGuard server is finally up and running – lots of work. 
Homecoming is Friday.
I attended the ALiCE exercise at NPE.  Walked with evacuation.  They did a great job. 
I attended the VGW September 11th ceremony.
On the hiring front.  We have not had a single person pass the hiring process since April 
1, 2019.  This is no April fool’s joke. 
JAG grant just approved for $95,064, we should receive grants documents for signing 
and approval. 
Had one complaint about new sign in roundabouts. 

Finance, Tricia Fogarty (Audio 15:10)
We wired the $3.3 million to our AML Investment Account.  The funds were there for a 
total of 4 days and we received $713.04 in interest.
A response went out to the IRS for issues from 2015.  I discovered the same issue 
occurred in 2016 as well so I will file 941x reports for the four quarters and write a 
response that should resolve the issue.
I had a Worker’s Comp audit with Alaska National the last week in August.  They found 
an issue where they charged a work comp claim to our policy for someone that isn’t our 
employee.  Alaska National will take care of this.
Department Heads have started working on the 2020 budget.  We outlined a schedule for 
this year’s budget process and workshops have been scheduled for October 28th-30th.

Director of City Services, Bill Butler (Audio 19:36) 
Building Department

Single building application received since last Council meeting – construction of 14 unit 
apartment building at corner of Snowman and 6th Avenue. 

Public Works
Released an invitation to bid on September 5th for heating fuel contract for calendar year 
2020.  Expect to make a recommendation of the preferred contractor for the October 7th

Council meeting.
Recommendation before Council this evening to extend the snow plowing contract for an 
additional year with Hubbard Excavation. 

Utility Department
Sulfolane settlement.

o 174 new customers have been connected to the system to date. 
o Commissioning of pumps at the pump house on September 17th is the last step 

before requesting an Interim Approval to Operate for Zone 3. 
o New Utility Assistant, Randy Binkley, started today.

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 6 of 73



Dr
aft

5 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 16, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Moose Creek Water System Expansion Project.
o Work proceeding by PDC to complete the 95@ design documents due October 

18.
o Work is beginning on generation of an invitation to bid for the pre-purchase of 

pipe to facilitate construction in spring 2020. 
o USAF has identified the funding for the Phase 2 construction – water mains in the 

southern section of Moose Creek.  Council approved accepting the full funding of 
the project, but USAF was originally uncertain it could acquire the Phase 2 funds 
before the end of the fiscal year on September 30, 2019.  The funding for Phase 2 
apparently has now become available.  I must submit a proposal to get the funds 
“awarded” to the City.

Borough Representative, Council Member Welch (Audio 25:41) 
The majority of items was on consent.  There was a liquor license discussed that was not 
protested.  There was an ordinance regarding rezoning.
Wednesday, the 18th from 6-8 at the North Pole Library will be a Q&A about air quality.
October 11th is the deadline for getting stuff in for the CIP.

City Clerk, Judy Binkley (Audio 29:27) 
In-person absentee voting began here, at City Hall today and will run through Monday, 
September 30th at 5pm.  The municipal election is Tuesday, October 1st and polls will be 
open from 7am-8pm. 
I need a City Representative for the FNSB Special Assembly Worksession this Thursday.  
I sent an email to Council last week with all the information.

ONGOING PROJECTS (Audio 30:56) 
Council Member Walley stated the next finance meeting is Tuesday, September 24th at 
3pm in Council Chambers. 

CITIZEN’S COMMENTS – (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen (Audio 31:33) 
Santa Claus, PO Box 55122, North Pole: Spoke to the upcoming election and how he is 
running for Council. 

OLD BUSINESS
Consented 

NEW BUSINESS
Consented 

COUNCIL COMMENTS
None 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 7 of 73



Dr
aft

6 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT September 16, 2019
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Mr. Thompson moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:34 p.m.

Seconded by Ms. Welch.

The regular meeting of Monday, September 16, 2019 adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 
Council on Monday, October 07, 2019. 

              
Michael W. Welch, Mayor

ATTEST:

       
Judy L. Binkley, City Clerk 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 8 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 9 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 10 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 11 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 12 of 73



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE  

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they are 
required to attest. Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in the 
regulations before completing this form.  The certifications shall be treated as a material representation 
of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of Justice (“Department”)
determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement. 

1. LOBBYING  

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Applicant certifies and 
assures (to the extent applicable) the following: 

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Applicant, to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal 
grant or cooperative agreement; 

(b) If the Applicant’s request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other than 
Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
grant or cooperative agreement, the Applicant shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL,
“Disclosure of Lobbying Activities” in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding agency’s) 
instructions; and 

(c) The Applicant shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with Federal 
award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of recipients of 
such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and filed in 
accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352. 

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS  

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension implemented at 2 
C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Applicant certifies, with respect to prospective 
participants in a primary tier “covered transaction,” as defined at 2 C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor 
any of its principals—

(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered 
transactions by any Federal department or agency; 

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal 
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or transaction; 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 13 of 73



 

 

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, 
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving stolen 
property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice, or commission of any offense indicating a 
lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its (or its principals’) 
present responsibility; 

 
(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 
(b) of this certification; and/or 

 
(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions 
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

 
B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall attach 
an explanation to this application.  Where the Applicant or any of its principals was convicted, within 
a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law, 
the Applicant also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in writing to the Department (for OJP 
Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to OVW at 
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov), unless 
such disclosure has already been made.  

 
3. FEDERAL TAXES 

 
A. If the Applicant is a corporation, it certifies either that (1) the corporation has no unpaid Federal tax 
liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted 
or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority 
responsible for collecting the tax liability, or (2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an 
unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to the Department (for OJP Applicants, to OJP at 
Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to OVW at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for 
COPS Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).   

 
B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall attach 
an explanation to this application. 

 
4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS) 

 
As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83, Subpart F, 
for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650: 

 
A. The Applicant certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free workplace by— 

 
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and 
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition; 

 
(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about— 

 
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 

 
(2) The Applicant’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 

 
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 14 of 73



(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations 
occurring in the workplace; 

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee’s conviction for a violation of a 
criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after 
such conviction; 

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under 
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. 
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such 
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530; 

For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice 
Programs, ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.  

Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award; 

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under 
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted: 

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including 
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; 
or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law 
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through 
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f). 

5.  COORDINATION REQUIRED UNDER PUBLIC SAFETY AND COMMUNITY POLICING 
PROGRAMS 

As required by the Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Act of 1994, at 34 U.S.C. § 
10382(c)(5), if this application is for a COPS award, the Applicant certifies that there has been 
appropriate coordination with all agencies that may be affected by its award.  Affected agencies may 
include, among others, Offices of the United States Attorneys; State, local, or tribal prosecutors; or 
correctional agencies.    

I acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement (or concealment or omission of a 
material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it supports, may be the subject of criminal 
prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. §§ 10271-10273), and 
also may subject me and the Applicant to civil penalties and administrative remedies for false claims or 
otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730 and 3801-3812). I also acknowledge that the
Department’s awards, including certifications provided in connection with such awards, are subject to 
review by the Department, including by its Office of the Inspector General. 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 15 of 73



PERSONNEL BUDGET DETAIL

POSITION TITLE/NAME QTY % TIME TOTAL

Officer Jacob Tibbetts - Salary 12 100% 54,876$

Officer Jacob Tibbetts - Overtime $39.55/hour 12 100% 1,980$

-$

-$

-$

-$

SUBTOTAL 56,856.00$

POSITION TITLE/NAME QTY % TIME TOTAL

PERS Contribution 12 100% 12,073$

Medicare - $56,856 x 6.2% = $3,525 12 100% 3,525$

Health Care - $750 x 26 pay periods 26.00 100% 19,500$

Worker Comp - $56,856 x 5.47% = $3,110 12.00 100% 3,110$

-$

-$

SUBTOTAL 38,208$

TOTAL 95,064.00$

750.00$

259.17$

 AMOUNT

1,006.06$

293.76$

PERSONNEL - List each position by title and name of employee if available. Show the monthly salary amount, 
number of months, and percentage of time to be devoted to the project. Compensataion paid for employees 
engaged in grant activities must be consistent with that paid for similar work within the applicant organization.

FRINGE BENEFITS - Fringe benefits should be based on actual known costs or an established formula.  Fringe 
benefits are for the personnel listed above and only for the percentage of time devoted to the project.  Fringe 
benefits on overtime hours are limited to FICA, Workman's Compensation, and Unemployment Compensation.

165$

MONTHLY 
AMOUNT

4,573$

City of North Pole
Grant# 20-18JAG-01

Budget Detail
10/01/19 to 09/30/20 Page 1 of 2City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 16 of 73



BUDGET SUMMARY

AMOUNT

56,856.00$

38,208.00$

-$

-$

-$

TOTAL 95,064.00$     

BUDGET CATEGORY

Personnel

Fringe

City of North Pole
Grant# 20-18JAG-01

Budget Detail
10/01/19 to 09/30/20 Page 2 of 2

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 17 of 73



FFY18 JAG Grant Agreement Form Updated 08/2019@
City of North Pole – Police Department
Grant# SF20-18JAG-01 Page 1 of 8

GRANT AGREEMENT 

ARTICLE I - GOVERNING LAW

Statutory Authority: The Edward Byrne Memoria Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program
statue is Subpart I of Part E of Title I of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act 
of 1968. Title I of Public Law No. 90-351 including subpart 1 of part E (34 U.S.C. 10151-
10158 and 28 U.S.C. 530C(a).

ARTICLE II - SCOPE OF WORK

A. The Grantee agrees that it will implement in all respects the Project Description 
submitted with the application and is considered a part of this Grant Agreement.

B. The Grantee agrees to make no change in the project described in the attachment and 
final approved application without first submitting a written request to the Department
and obtaining the Department's written approval of the requested change.

C. The Grantee shall provide all the necessary qualified personnel, material, and facilities 
to implement the program described herein.

ARTICLE III – PROJECT PERIOD

A. The term of this Grant Agreement shall be for the period of time described on the Grant 
Award page of this agreement and SHALL NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE UNTIL THE 
AGREEMENT IS FULLY SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED SIGNER AND RECEIVED 
BY THE DEPARTMENT.

B. In the event that, due to unusual circumstances, it becomes apparent that this Grant 
Agreement cannot be brought to full completion within the time period set forth in the 
Grant Award, the Grantee shall so notify the Department in writing at least thirty (30) 
days prior to the termination date of this Grant Agreement.  Such notice shall contain a 
description of the unusual circumstances causing the project to be incomplete.

ARTICLE IV - REPORTS

A. Reports

In order that the Department may adequately determine the progress of the Grant 
Project, the Grantee shall make Progress Reports to the Department per the schedule 
herein.  The said Reports shall be on the form provided by the Department and contain 
the following:

1. Program Report: A description of the work accomplished to date, the methods 
and procedures used, and the impact of the project.  Semi-annual progress reports
shall be submitted to the Department no later than fifteen days following the end of 
each report period.

2. Reimbursement Requests:  The Grantee shall submit a request for 
reimbursement to the Department at a minimum quarterly. The Grantee will 
provide the Department approved documentation supporting the expenses with the 
request for reimbursement. This may be from the Grantee’s accounting system. 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 18 of 73



FFY18 JAG Grant Agreement Form Updated 08/2019@
City of North Pole – Police Department
Grant# SF20-18JAG-01 Page 2 of 8

3. Other information specified by the Department or as may be of assistance to the 
Department in its evaluation, such as Project Equipment Reports.

B. Other Reports

1. The Grantee shall report any changes to key personnel to the Department within 30 
days of the change.

ARTICLE V - FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION

A. The Grantee must establish and maintain separate accounting for the use of grant 
funds. The use of funds in any manner contrary to allowable grant activities shall result 
in the subsequent termination of the grant and any balance of funds.  It shall also 
result in the Grantee being required to return to the State any funds determined not 
allowed. 

B. The Grantee shall submit a request for reimbursement no later than 15 calendar days 
after the end of a calendar month.  A Final Request for Reimbursement must be 
submitted no later than 30 calendar days following the end of the grant period.

Reimbursement Requests must be:

1. For expenses incurred within the period covered by the grant agreement; 

2. For expenses incurred and paid by the Grantee within the request period specified 
on the Grant Award;

3. Submitted in a format provided or approved by the Department, and must be 
provided by a responsible signatory of the Grantee;

4. Based upon the Grantee’s accounting system, a financial report generated from 
the accounting system must be attached to the request for reimbursement.

5. Supported by appropriate source documentation including, but not limited to: 
vendor billings, time sheets, travel authorizations, cancelled checks, tickets, payroll 
records, or other applicable information necessary to substantiate expenditures. 
Department staff may request copies of source documentation prior to or after 
payment for any Reimbursement Requests.

6. The Grantee must use direct charging on timesheets for all time spent on grant 
related activity or must use a methodology for the allocation of personal services 
costs approved by the Department.  The Grantee must use a cost allocation 
methodology approved by the Department for any other shared costs charged to 
the grant and must provide the Department with appropriate documentation 
supporting the methodology used.   The Grantee shall contact the Department for 
additional guidance or technical assistance.

7. No advance payments are authorized under this Agreement, unless approved by 
the Department.

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 19 of 73



FFY18 JAG Grant Agreement Form Updated 08/2019@
City of North Pole – Police Department
Grant# SF20-18JAG-01 Page 3 of 8

ARTICLE VI - BUDGET

A. The Department is not liable for Grantee incurred costs or services that exceed the 
grant agreement budget.  The Department will not honor requests for excessive 
payments.  It is the responsibility of the Grantee to secure a properly executed grant 
budget revision to this grant agreement when the circumstances require changes to 
the budget. The Grantee will in no case exceed in expenditure or in commitment the 
total dollar amount agreed upon in the grant agreement.  The Grantee is responsible 
for any and all over-expenditures and for any disallowed costs that it may incur.

B. Any change to the terms and conditions of this grant agreement must be made through 
a written amendment. Amendments do not take effect until signed by the Department.

ARTICLE VII - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

A. The Grantee and any sub-recipient shall adhere to generally accepted accounting 
principles. The Grantee’s financial management system shall: Provide Accurate, 
current, and complete accounting of financial activities under this grant;

B. Adequately identify the source and application of funds for cost reimbursable 
activities;

C. Provide effective control over and accountability for all grant funds and real and 
personal property acquired with grant funds;

D. Maintain separate financial records for the accounting of funds related to this grant 
agreement;

E. Maintain systematic methods to for timely and appropriate resolution of audit findings 
or recommendations;

F. Retain source documentation that adequately identifies the nature and use of grant 
funds; Allow for comparison of actual and budgeted amounts; and,

G. The Grantee shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws regarding the 
collection, deposit, payment and reporting of taxes, including obtaining an employer 
identification number and providing W-2 forms to employees.

ARTICLE VIII - AUDIT REQUIREMENTS
A. An Audit of the Grantee operations may be required by the President’s Office of 

Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and 
Non-Profit Organizations, or the State of Alaska Single Audit Regulations at 2 AAC 
45.010 – 45.090.

B. A Single Audit is required when an organization is in receipt of State financial 
assistance that expends a cumulative total equal to or greater than $500,000 during 
the entity’s fiscal year under the State of Alaska Single Audit Regulations at 2 AAC 
45.010  – 45.090.

ARTICLE IX - TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 20 of 73



FFY18 JAG Grant Agreement Form Updated 08/2019@
City of North Pole – Police Department
Grant# SF20-18JAG-01 Page 4 of 8

A. The Department, by written notice to the Grantee, shall have the right to terminate this 
Grant Agreement if, at any time, in the judgment of the Department the provisions of 
this Agreement have been violated or the activities described in the Project Description 
have not progressed satisfactorily.  In this regard, the Department may demand refund 
of all or part of the funds disbursed to the Grantee.

B. The Parties may modify any and all terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement by 
mutual agreement between the Grantee and the Department.

ARTICLE X - CONDITIONS OF AWARD AND ACCEPTANCE

A. Acceptance within 45 days.  Within 45 days from the issuance date of these 
documents to the Grantee, if the Grantee does not confirm acceptance that it will 
utilize the grant by signing and returning the award agreement to the Department,
obligation to set aside these federal funds for use by the Grantee shall be terminated 
without further cause.

B. Commencement within 60 days.  If a project is not operational within 60 days of the 
original starting date of the grant period, the Grantee must report, by letter, to the 
Department the steps taken to initiate the project, the reasons for delay, and the 
expected starting date.

C. Operational within 90 days.  If a project is not operational within 90 days of the original 
starting date of the grant period, the Grantee must submit a second statement to the 
Department explaining the implementation delay.  Upon receipt of the 90-day letter, 
the Department may cancel the project and request Grantor Agency approval to 
distribute the funds to other project areas.

ARTICLE XI - CERTIFICATION

The Grantee hereby assures and certifies that it will comply with State and Federal 
regulations, policies, guidelines, and requirements with respect to the acceptance and use 
of funds for this program.  Also, the Grantee hereby assures and certifies with respect to 
this Grant that:

A. The Grantee agrees to comply with the financial and administrative requirements set 
forth in the current edition of the Department of Justice Programs (OJP) Financial 
Guide, available online at http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/FinGuide/.

B. Funds made available under this Grant will not be used to supplant state or local funds 
but will be used to increase the amounts of such funds that would, in the absence of 
federal funds, be made available for the same purpose.

C. The Grantee will submit all project-related contracts, subcontracts, agreements, and 
subsequent amendments to the Department for review and approval prior to 
execution.

D. No member, officer, or employee of the Grantee, or its designees or agents, no
member of the governing body of the locality in which the program is situated, and no 
other public official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions or 
responsibilities with respect to the program during his or her tenure or for one year 
thereafter, will have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or 
the process thereof, for work to be performed in connection with the program assisted 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 21 of 73



FFY18 JAG Grant Agreement Form Updated 08/2019@
City of North Pole – Police Department
Grant# SF20-18JAG-01 Page 5 of 8

under the grant, and the Grantee shall incorporate, in all such contracts or
subcontracts, a provision prohibiting such interest pursuant to the purposes of this 
certification.

E. The Grantee certifies that the programs contained in its application and Project 
Description meet all the requirements of the 1988 Anti-Drug Abuse Act, that all 
information is correct, that the applicant will comply with all provisions of the Act and all 
other applicable Federal and State laws, regulations, and guidelines.

F. The Grantee will complete and keep on file, as appropriate, the Immigration and 
Naturalization Service Employment Eligibility Form (1-9).  

G. The Grantee will, if required, formulate an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan 
(EEOP) in accordance with 28 CFR 42.301, et. seq., and submit their EEOP or EEOP 
Short Form directly to the Office for Civil Rights within 60 days of the date of this 
agreement. If the Grantee is claiming a full or partial exemption from the EEOP 
requirement, the Grantee must submit an EEOP Certification Form to the Office for 
Civil Rights. 

H. The Grantee agrees to the following: to forward to the Alaska Department of Public 
Safety for submission to the Department for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, 
U.S. Department of Justice any finding of discrimination against the Grantee by a 
federal or state court or federal or state administrative agency on the grounds of race, 
color, religion, national origin, or sex and to provide meaningful access to their 
programs and activities to individuals who are Limited English Proficient. 

I. The Grantee assures that it will comply (and will require any subgrantees or 
contractors to comply) with any applicable statutorily-imposed nondiscrimination 
requirements, which may include the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 
1968 (42 U.S.C. § 3789d(c)(1)); the Victims of Crime Act (42 U.S.C. § 10604(e)); the 
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. § 5672(b)); the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 
§ 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132); the Education 
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 
U.S.C. § 6102); and  the Department of Justice regulations on the Equal Treatment 
for Faith-Based Organizations (28 CFR part 38).

J. The Grantee assures that in accordance with federal civil rights laws, the Grantee shall
not retaliate against individuals for taking action or participating in action to secure 
rights protected by the laws referenced in Article XI – O. above.

ARTICLE XII - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

A.  Management

The Grantee's procedures for managing equipment (including replacement), whether 
acquired in whole or in part with funds made available through this Grant, will, at a 
minimum, meet the following requirements:

1. Property records must be maintained which include:

i. Description of the property;

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 22 of 73



FFY18 JAG Grant Agreement Form Updated 08/2019@
City of North Pole – Police Department
Grant# SF20-18JAG-01 Page 6 of 8

ii. Serial number or other identification number;
iii. Source of the property;
iv. Identification of title holder;
v. Acquisition date;
vi. Cost of property;
vii. Percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the property;
viii. Location of the property;
ix. Use and condition of the property; and
x. Disposition data, including the date of disposal and sale price.

2. A physical inventory of the property must be taken and the results reconciled with 
the property records at least once every two years.

3. A control system must exist to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, 
damage, or theft of the property.  Any loss, damage, or theft shall be investigated 
by the Grantee and the Department, as appropriate.

4. Adequate maintenance procedures must exist to keep the property in good 
condition.

5. If authorized or required by the Department to sell the property, proper sales 
procedures must be established to ensure the highest possible return.

B. Disposition

The Grantee shall dispose of equipment when original or replacement acquired with 
grant funds is no longer needed for the original project or program, or for other 
activities currently or previously supported by a Federal agency.  Disposition of 
equipment will be made as follows:

1. Items with a current per unit fair market value of less than $5,000 may be retained, 
sold, or otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the Department.

2. Items with a current per unit fair market value in excess of $5,000 may be retained 
or sold, and the Department shall have a right to an amount calculated by 
multiplying the current market value or proceeds from sale by the Department's 
share of the equipment. Seller is also eligible for sale costs.

3. In cases where the Grantee fails to take appropriate disposition actions, the 
Department may direct the Grantee to take other disposition actions. 

ARTICLE XIII - PROJECT RECORD MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AND ACCESS 

A. The Grantee shall maintain Grant records that disclose the amount and disposition of 
the total funds from all sources budgeted for the Grant Agreement period, the purpose 
of undertaking for which such funds were used, the amount and nature of all 
contributions from other sources, and such other records as the Department shall 
prescribe.  Such records shall be preserved for a period of not less than three (3) 
years following completion of the project.

B. The following shall have access to any books, documents, ledgers, papers and records 
of the Grantee determined to be pertinent to the purpose of making audit, examination, 
excerpts, and transcripts:

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 23 of 73



FFY18 JAG Grant Agreement Form Updated 08/2019@
City of North Pole – Police Department
Grant# SF20-18JAG-01 Page 7 of 8

1. The U. S. Department of Justice;

2. The Comptroller General of the United States;

3. The Department, its agents, or assigns or successors in function; and 

4. Duly authorized representatives of any of the above.

ARTICLE XIV - MONITORING AND EVALUATION

Monitoring shall be accomplished by the Department at times deemed reasonable and 
proper by the Department.  The Department shall make every effort not to disturb or 
disrupt any program or activity beyond that necessary to secure relevant data and make a 
reasonable assessment of the Grantee's performance.

A. Monitoring by the Department may be performed on a continuing basis throughout the 
grant period and may involve telephone contact, written communication, analysis of 
submitted reports, and on-site visits.

B. It shall be the purpose of monitoring by the Department to reinforce, improve, and
augment the Grantee's capacity to administer this grant by identifying potential 
problem areas and recommending corrective action to prevent deficiencies.

C. The Department shall provide a Monitoring Report in writing to the Grantee which 
outlines review findings, specifies recommendations which reflect corrective action 
required, if any, and a due date for the corrective action to be in place. 

D. When the Department has confirmed that the appropriate corrective action has been 
taken, a letter shall be sent to the Grantee stating that the finding(s) has been closed.

ARTICLE XV - PUBLICATION OF PROJECT ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS

When publicizing project activities and results, the Grantee shall include the following 
statements:

A. “The opinions, findings and conclusions or recommendations expressed in this 
publication/program/exhibition are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily 
reflect the views of the Department of Public Safety or the Department of Justice.”

B. “This project was supported by a grant awarded by the Alaska Department of Public 
Safety, through funding from the U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice 
Programs, Bureau of Justice Statistics”

ARTICLE XVI - WRITTEN DESCRIPTIONS OF PROGRAMS

When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid solicitations, and 
other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or part with Federal
funds, the Grantee shall clearly state the following:

A. The percentage of the total cost of the program or project which is or will be financed 
with Federal money; and

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 24 of 73



FFY18 JAG Grant Agreement Form Updated 08/2019@
City of North Pole – Police Department
Grant# SF20-18JAG-01 Page 8 of 8

B. The dollar amount of Federal funds for the project or program.

However, if disclosing this information would in any way imperil the project, the Grantee is 
exempt from this requirement.

ARTICLE XVII - SPECIAL TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND WAIVERS

A. Any funds not properly obligated by the end of the Grant Award will lapse and revert to 
the Department.  The obligation deadline is the last day of the Grant Award period as 
specified in Section II of the Grant Award page of this agreement.

B. If the Grantee is a Native Village, Native tribe or another Native tribal entity, the 
Grantee hereby irrevocably waives any sovereign immunity that it may possess, and 
consents to suit against itself and its officers, employees and agents, in the courts of 
the State of Alaska or any other state or federal court of competent jurisdiction, as to 
all claims or causes of action by the State of Alaska, or the United States or any other 
person arising out of or in connection with this grant award. 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 25 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 26 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 27 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 28 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 29 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 30 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 31 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 32 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 33 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 34 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 35 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 36 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 37 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 38 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 39 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 40 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 41 of 73



STATE OF ALASKA 
Department of Public Safety 

 
Internal Controls Questionnaire 

 
 
Agency Name:  City of North Pole 
Completed by:  Chief Steve Dutra  
Date:  9/19/2019 
 

 
1. Do you have written financial policies and procedures? yes 

 
 

2. Does your accounting system track grant funds/projects separately? yes 
 
 

3. How do you ensure compliance with your budget? Are there reviews conducted and how 
often? yes – annual audits 
 
 

4. Do you have written purchasing policies and procedures? Yes 
 
 

5. Is there inventory control over equipment? Yes 
 
 

6. Are audits or reconciliations to the General Ledger performed and how often? Yes – 
Annual=audits and monthly for reconciliations 
 
 

7. Do you have written travel policies and procedures? Yes 
 
 

8. Are time and attendance records maintained for each employee? Yes 
 
 

9. Are timesheets signed by both the employee and supervisor? Yes - Electronically 
 
 

10. Do you have written record retention policies? Yes 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 42 of 73



INVITATION TO BID
HEATING FUEL OIL

CALENDAR YEAR 2020
City of North Pole

125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, AK 99705

907-488-2281

The City of North Pole, hereafter referred to as “City”, is inviting bids for the delivery of heating 
fuel for all municipally owned facilities on a “keep-full” basis. The City annually consumes 
approximately 40,000 to 50,000 gallons of heating fuel oil per year. The Invitation to Bid (ITB)
requests bid prices for heating fuel. The City at a minimum requires bid price for delivery of #1
heating fuel, but prefers bid prices for the delivery of #1 and #2 heating fuel. A spreadsheet of 
the last 12 months of fuel usage for each City facility is available upon request.

1. The quoted price shall be on a flat per gallon delivery rate PLUS the bidder’s refinery rack 
price as of September 25, 2019.

2. The awarded supplier shall pass through increases or decreases in their rack price on a direct 
basis. The Contractor shall notify the City in writing as refinery price changes occur and the 
notification shall include documentation of the refinery rack price change. No payment 
will be made for the refinery price changes unless this documentation accompanies the 
billing statement.

3. Building locations, tank sizes and type tank--buried or above ground are the following:

Location
Tank size
(gallons)

Tank type

City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane 1,500 Buried
Eighth Ave. Fire Well, 110 East 8th Avenue 1,000 Buried
Highway Park Pump Station, 2696 Mockler Avenue 500 Buried
North Pole Fire Department Garage, 113 Lewis Street 300 Above ground
North Pole Fire Station Annex, 243 1st Avenue 500 Buried
North Pole Fire Station, 110 Lewis Street 1,500 Buried
Police Station, 120 Snowman Lane 1,500 Buried
Public Works Building, 133 Lewis Street 1,000 Buried
Santa’s Seniors Center, 101 E. 5th Avenue 1,000 Buried
Stillmeyer Water Pump Station, 810 Refinery Loop 500 Buried
Utility Garage, 2389 Homestead Road 1000 Buried
Wastewater Treatment Plant, 961 Shellinger Street 1,000 Buried
Water Treatment Plant, 401 Snowman Lane 3,000 Above ground
Well House, 791 Clear Water Court 2000 Above ground
Peridot Pump House, 2000 Peridot Street 3,500 Above ground

4. The tanks shall be completely filled with each delivery and the delivery tickets shall be 
dropped off at the North Pole City Hall at the time of delivery. Spill absorbent pads shall be 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 43 of 73



carried and placed around the fill pipe if required. Spills shall be reported to City Hall 
immediately and the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation.

5. The term of the awarded contract shall be from January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020.

6. Bids shall be placed in a separate and sealed envelope plainly marked Heating Fuel Bid 
2020 on the outside of the envelope. 

7. Bids shall be addressed to:
City Clerk

City of North Pole
125 Snowman Lane

North Pole, AK 99705.

8. Faxed bids will not be accepted. All bids shall be evaluated in accordance with the criteria set 
forth in Section 4.16.040 of the City of North Pole Code of Ordinances. The City reserves the 
right to reject any and all bids.

9. Bids must be received in the City Clerk’s Office by 2:00 p.m., Monday, September 30, 
2019, at which time the bids will be opened and publicly read aloud. It is anticipated that the 
North Pole City Council will award this contract at the regularly scheduled City Council 
meeting Monday, October 7, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the North Pole City Council Chambers.

BID SUBMISSION 

DOCUMENTS REQUIRED WITH BID

A bidders’ submission MUST include the following TWO items with the bid to be complete;
otherwise, it will be considered incomplete and non-responsive.

A. Bid Form
Bids shall be submitted on the Bid Form or reasonable copy.

B. Alaska Business License
Provide a copy of the firm’s current Alaska Business license.

VALIDITY OF BID 

Offers made in accordance with the bidding documents must be good and firm for a period of 
sixty (60) days from the date of bid opening.

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 44 of 73



CONTRACT TERMS

Contract terms are those contained in this ITB. The Contractor’s duties begin on January 1, 2020.
This agreement will end by its own terms December 31, 2020.

CONTRACT RENEWAL OPTION

The City reserves the option to renew this contract upon mutual agreement for two (2) additional 
one-year periods at the same terms, conditions, and prices. For each year the contract is extended 
the Contractor shall submit a current Certificate of Insurance that satisfies the City’s insurance 
requirements in affect at that time and submit a copy of the Contractor’s current State of Alaska 
and City of North Pole business licenses. The contractor may request an adjustment in the 
contract prices as part of the renewal. Adjustment of contract prices is subject to City Council 
approval.

ACCEPTANCE OF BIDS

The City reserves the right to reject any or all bids, to waive any informalities in the procedures, 
or to cancel the solicitation if it is in the best interest of the City. The City shall have the right to 
reject any bid from a bidder determined by the City, at its discretion, to be not responsible or not 
qualified to perform the bid specifications. A determination that a bidder is not responsible may 
be made solely on the basis of previous failure to perform properly or to complete contracts.

If any Addenda are issued pertaining to the bidding documents and subject Addenda are not 
acknowledged on the Bid Form, the bid will be considered non-responsive. The Bid Form 
provides a space for acknowledgement of receipt of Addenda.

Telegraphic or electronic bids will not be accepted.

All bids shall be made on the forms provided by the City or copy thereof and shall be signed by 
the bidder with signature in full. Each bid shall be enclosed in a separate sealed envelope and 
clearly marked Heating Fuel Bid 2020.

Any bidder may withdraw, modify, or correct his/her bid after it has been deposited with the 
City. Such requests for withdrawal, modifications, or correction must be received by the City in 
writing or by electronic telecommunication before the time set for opening bids. The original bid, 
as modified by such written or electronic telecommunications will be considered as the bid 
submitted by the bidder; provided that written confirmation of any telegraphic withdrawal, 
modification, or correction over the signature of the bidder is placed in the mail and postmarked 
prior to the time set for the bid opening or hand delivered to the North Pole City Hall and signed 
and dated by an official representative of the City. The City expressly reserves the right to reject 
any and all bids and to not award the proposed agreement, if it is in the City’s best interest.

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 45 of 73



NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD AND NOTICE OF AWARD

Award of the contract is at the sole discretion of the North Pole City Council. Upon authorization 
of the bid, the bidder will be sent a Notice of Intent to Award. The bidder will have ten (10) 
business days to submit the following TWO (2) items:

1. Certificate of Insurance
2. City of North Pole Business License

Failure to submit these items may lead to award of the contract to another bidder.

Upon acceptance of the Certificate of Insurance and City of North Pole Business License, the 
bidder will receive a Notice of Award for signature.

SUPPLEMENTAL DOCUMENTS

A. City of North Pole Business License

City of North Pole Business License applications can be obtained at the North Pole City Hall or 
on the City’s website at http://www.northpolealaska.com/ in the Doing Business pull-down
menu.

B. Certificate of Insurance

Insurance Requirements

Prior to starting work, the Contractor shall purchase and maintain at its expense commercial 
general liability and other insurance as set forth below from a responsible insurer authorized to 
do business in the state where the Project is located and having an A.M. Best rating of at least A 
VII. Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence to the Owner that the Contractor has complied 
with the requirements in the form of an insurance certificates and Owner reserves the right, upon 
written request, to receive and review all Contractor insurance policies and endorsements in 
effect during the duration of this contract and for any duration thereafter for which coverage is 
required as set forth below.

All policies shall be written on an occurrence basis, shall (except Workers Compensation) 
include the Owner, Architect, Construction Manager, General Contractor, and the architects, 
directors, officers, representatives, agents, and employees of such parties as additional insureds 
and Contractors’ policies shall be primary over any insurance or self-insurance program of any 
such party. Contractor shall ensure that its subcontractors, at a minimum carry insurance 
equivalent to the coverages set forth below. The insurance required shall be written for not less 
than any limits of liability stated in this Contract, in the Contract Documents or as required by 
law, whichever is greater. Contractor’s liability is not limited to the minimum amounts of 
insurance coverage required. The Contractor is solely responsible for determining whether 
additional coverage or greater limits are required to protect its interests from hazards or claims in 
excess of the specified minimum insurance. Where special or unusual hazards peculiar to this 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 46 of 73



project are foreseeable, the Contractor shall take such steps as are necessary to insure it against 
such hazards.

If Contractor has any self-insured retention or deductible under any of the following minimum 
required coverages, Contractor must identify on the Certificate of Insurance the nature and 
amount of such self-insured retention or deductible and provide satisfactory evidence of financial 
responsibility for such obligations. All deductibles and self-insured retentions will be 
Contractor’s sole responsibility.

Commercial General Liability: Contractor will maintain commercial general liability insurance 
covering all operations by or on behalf of Contractor on an occurrence basis against claims for 
personal injury, bodily injury, death and property damage (including loss of use). Such insurance 
will have these minimum limits and coverage:

A. Minimum limits
$1,000,000 each occurrence
$1,000,000 personal & adv injury
$2,000,000 general aggregate
$2,000,000 products and completed operations aggregate

B. Coverages
1. The policy shall be written on ISO form CG 00 01 12 07 or equivalent.
2. Contractual Liability Coverage shall be as provided in CG 00 01 12 07. The policy 

shall be free from any endorsement or language limiting contractual liability coverage 
beyond the limitations of CG 00 01 12 07. 

3. The policy shall be free from ISO endorsements CG 22 94, CG 22 95 or any 
equivalent endorsement or language.

4. They policy shall provide for severability of interests.
5. The policy shall be free from ISO endorsement CG 21 42 or CG 21 43 or any similar 

endorsement limiting or excluding coverage for Explosion, Collapse and 
Underground exposures.

6. The general aggregate shall apply on a “per project” basis.
7. The policy shall provide for a specific waiver of subrogation in favor of the additional 

insured parties.
8. The policy shall contain additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 04 13 and CG 20 

37 04 13 or equivalent as approved by Owner.
9. The policy shall be written to provide coverage on a primary and non- contributory 

basis.

Automobile Liability: Contractor will maintain business auto liability insurance covering 
liability arising out of any auto (including owned, hired, and non-owned autos).

A. Minimum Limits
1. $1,000,000 combined single limit each accident

B. Coverages
1. Additional insured endorsement
2. Specific waiver of subrogation

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 47 of 73



3. Contractual liability

Workers’ Compensation: Contractor will maintain workers’ compensation and employer’s 
liability insurance.

A. Minimum Limits
1. Workers’ compensation – statutory limit
2. Employer’s liability

a. $1,000,000 bodily injury for each accident
b. $1,000,000 bodily injury by disease for each employee
c. $1,000,000 bodily injury disease aggregate

B. Coverages
1. The policy shall provide for a specific waiver of subrogation in favor of the parties 

required to be named additional insured under the Contractor’s General Liability 
policy.

Pollution Liability: Contractor will purchase pollution liability insurance coverage with all
coverage retroactive to the earlier of the date of this Contract and the commencement of
Contractor’s services in relation to the Project as follows: (If Applicable) 

A. Minimum Limits:$2,000,000 each occurrence/$4,000,000 aggregate
B. Coverages:

1. Contractual Liability
2. Personal Injury
3. Bodily Injury
4. Property Damage
5. Contractor named Loss Payee
6. Primary and noncontributory coverage

Waivers of Subrogation. The Contractor waives all rights against the Owner and any of its 
subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents, employees, the Construction Manager, the 
Architect, Owner’s Engineer, Bank’s Engineer, Construction Agent, Financing Parties and all 
tiers of contractors or consultants engaged by them; for recovery under subrogation or 
otherwise to the extent covered by insurance required under this contract or other insurance 
applicable to the Work, except such rights as the Contractor may have to proceeds of any 
insurance held by the Owner as fiduciary, if any. The Contractor shall require of the 
Subcontractor's, Sub-subcontractors, agents and employees, by appropriate agreements, written 
where legally required for validity, similar waivers in favor of the parties enumerated herein. 
The policies shall provide such waivers of subrogation by endorsement or otherwise. A waiver 
of subrogation shall be effective as to a person or entity even though that person or entity would 
otherwise have a duty of indemnification, contractual or otherwise, did not pay the insurance 
premium directly or indirectly, and whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest 
in property damaged.

Duration of Coverage. All required coverages will be maintained without interruption during 
the entire term of this Subcontract plus an additional two (2) years in products and completed 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 48 of 73



operation coverage following final acceptance of the Project by the Owner and at all times 
thereafter when Contractor may be correcting, removing, or replacing defective Work.

Notice of Cancellation. Required insurance policies shall contain an endorsement requiring the 
insurance carrier to provide 30 days advance written notice to the Owner prior to any change in 
or cancellation of any policy required herein. Should any coverage expire prior to completion of 
Work, proof of renewal of said policy shall be provided to Owner at least Thirty (30) days prior 
to expiration date of the policy.

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 49 of 73



Bid Form: 2020 Heating Fuel
City of North Pole

125 Snowman Lane
North Pole, AK 99705

Tel: 907-488-2281; Fax: 907-488-3002

#1 Heating Fuel Price Quote
Column A Column B
Delivery and other charges
per gallon for #1 heating fuel 
as of September 25, 2019*

Bidder’s per gallon refinery 
rack charge for #1 heating fuel
as of September 25, 2019*

Total per gallon price 
(Column A + Column B)

All bidders are required to provide their refinery rack price for the same date—Friday, September 25,
2019—to enable comparison among bidders.

#2 Heating Fuel Price Quote
Column A Column B

Delivery and other charges
per gallon for #2 heating fuel
as of September 25, 2019*

Bidder’s per gallon refinery 
rack charge for #2 heating fuel

as of September 25, 2019*
Total per gallon price 

(Column A + Column B)

All bidders are required to provide their refinery rack price for the same date—Friday, September 25,
2019—to enable comparison among bidders.

Company name

Address

City/State/ZIP

Telephone number Fax number

Authorized individual’s name (print) Authorized individual’s title

Authorized individual’s signature Date

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 50 of 73



Acknowledgement of Addenda

Submitter has received and examined the Addenda listed below, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged by listing the Addendum Number and Addendum Date.

Addendum Number Addendum Date

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 51 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 52 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 53 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 54 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 55 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 56 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 57 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 58 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 59 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 60 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 61 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 62 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 63 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 64 of 73



1

Memorandum 

To: Mayor Welch & North Pole City Council   

From: Tricia Fogarty, CFO

Date: 10/2/2019

Re: Ice Rink Fund, Fund Balance $10,579.93

.
The Fairbanks North Star Borough Parks & Recreation and the FNSB 
School District have agreed to renovate the covered North Pole High School 
Ice Rink.  The FNSB plans to provide some funding for these repairs; the 
North Pole Hockey Cooperative is a group of volunteers that is currently 
directed by Jeremy Holan.  He has offered to provide their remaining rink 
repair funds that are held by the City of North Pole. 

The North Pole Ice Rink Fund was set up under Mayor Jacobson in 2005.
The fund was not formally set up by ordinance or resolution.  The City 
accepted donations to be used to repair the North Pole Middle School Ice 
Rink.  Repairs were made by volunteers, and receipts of materials are turned 
in for reimbursement.

My recommendation is to forward the balance of the fund to the Fairbanks 
North Star Bough and close the fund.   

Thank you 
Tricia 

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 65 of 73



Sponsored by: Mayor Michael W. Welch & Council Member Walley
Introduced: October 07, 2019

1

CITY OF NORTH POLE1
ORDINANCE 19-182

3
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 4

AMENDING TITLE 4, CHAPTER 08.050 SALES TAX CODE TO 5
COLLECT SALES TAX FROM ONLINE RETAILERS6

7
WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement; 8
and,9

10
WHEREAS, retail sellers making deliveries to buyers in the City of North Pole benefit from 11
City services; and,12

13
WHEREAS, exempting catalog and internet retailers from the obligation to collect and remit 14
sales taxes provides these retailers an unfair competitive advantage over local retailers; and,15

16
WHEREAS, in order to pursue a new revenue stream, the City of North Pole will remove the 17
exemption for goods and services purchased through mail order catalogs or the internet; and,18

19
WHEREAS, to continuously provide quality services to our citizens, businesses and to attract 20
future growth of our community; and,21

22
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 23
requirements of the City and to provide clarification as needed.24

25
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole:26

27
Section 1. This ordinance is of permanent nature and shall be codified in the North Pole Code of 28
Ordinances.29

30
Section 2. General provisions of the North Pole Municipal Code of Ordinances are amended as 31
follows by inserting the text underlined and in red, and removing the language that has been 32
stricken.33

34
4.08.050 Exemptions.35

36
A. The following classes of sales, rentals, and services are exempt from the tax imposed by 37

this chapter:38
1. Casual and isolated sales not exceeding $1,000 (one thousand dollars) per 39

calendar year and not requiring the seller to hold a current City or State business 40
license;41

2. Sales, services, rentals, and transactions which the municipality is prohibited from42
taxing under the Constitution of the United States or the State of Alaska, 43
including but not limited to:44

a. Sales of insurance bonds of guaranty, fidelity, and the commissions 45
thereon,46

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 66 of 73



Sponsored by: Mayor Michael W. Welch & Council Member Walley
Introduced: October 07, 2019

2

b. Sales to Federally chartered credit unions,47
c. Sales of goods made with food coupons, food stamps, or other type of 48

certificate issued under 7 USC 2011 through 2025 (Food Stamp Act), or 49
made with food coupons, food vouchers, or other type of certificate issued 50
under 42 USC 1786 (Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, 51
Infants, and Children);52

3. Sales, rentals, or services provided to the United States, to the State of Alaska, 53
and any public corporation or political subdivision thereof;54

4. Sales, rentals, or services provided to any volunteer ambulance, fire, or law 55
enforcement organization providing service to the public and to public 56
international organizations designated by the President of the United States;57

5. Sales of professional medical services performed by a person, clinic, or hospital 58
licensed and certified under the State of Alaska:59

a. The preparation of controlled substances prescribed and supplied by a 60
State licensed and certified medical professional,61

b. Counseling services provided by State licensed and certified psychologists 62
or psychological associates, clinical social workers, alcohol and drug 63
counselors, or marital and family therapists,64

c. Assisted living services provided in accordance with State regulations, and 65
licensed by such,66

d. Sales and rentals of hearing aids, crutches, wheelchairs, and other personal 67
property specifically manufactured for a patient;68

6. Sales of newspapers or other periodicals by carrier made directly to consumers 69
where the carrier is responsible for the collection of sales revenue;70

7. Goods and services purchased through mail order catalogs or the Internet;71
8. 7. Membership dues, fees, or assessments paid to clubs, labor unions, fraternal 72

organizations, and other nonprofit organizations that have obtained Exemption 73
Certificate 501(c) from the Internal Revenue Service;74

9. 8. Sales, services, and rentals to a buyer, or made by a seller, for functions 75
organized and administered solely by an organization holding a current 501(c)(3) 76
or 501(c)(4) exemption ruling or equivalent from the Internal Revenue Service 77
which has a physical or mailing address within City limits and a resolution or 78
letter from the board, naming up to a maximum of six individuals, authorized to 79
make purchases on behalf of the organization. This exemption does not apply to 80
the sale of pull-tab games;81

10. 9. Sales of school admission tickets, goods, services, and rentals for school 82
entertainment, athletic activities, and all other activities conducted by school 83
sanctioned groups;84

11. 10. Sales of food and beverages in public or private school and college cafeterias 85
or lunchrooms which are not operated for profit;86

12. 11. Rentals of real property where the term of tenancy is monthly or longer;87
13. 12. Sales, rentals, or leases/purchase agreements of automobiles by a dealer made 88

outside City limits;89
14. 13. Sales for resale (wholesale) of tangible personal or real property, other than 90

tobacco, to a buyer for reselling in its original form;91
15. 14. The commission earned on real estate sales;92

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 67 of 73



Sponsored by: Mayor Michael W. Welch & Council Member Walley
Introduced: October 07, 2019

3

16. 15. Air, train, bus and boat fares, lodging, adventure and similar and related 93
services and the commission earned by licensed agents in the sale thereof;94

17. 16. Sales of food and merchandise in the farmer’s market. City business licenses 95
are required by vendors; 96

18. 17. Sales of services to include but not limited to architectural, carpentry, 97
electrical, engineering, financial, general contractor, landscaping, legal, plumbing, 98
snow removal, etc. City business licenses are required; the sale of goods and 99
products associated with the service is not exempt unless previously described in 100
this chapter.101

102
Section 3. Effective date.103
This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on the first City business day following its 104
adoption.105

106
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 107
_____ day of _____, 2019.108

109
110

_____________________________111
Michael W. Welch, Mayor112

ATTEST:113
114
115

________________________________116
Judy L. Binkley, City Clerk117

118
119 PASSED/FAILED

Yes: 
No:
Absent:

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 68 of 73



Sponsored by: Mayor Michael W. Welch & Council Member Walley
Introduced: October 07, 2019

1

CITY OF NORTH POLE1
ORDINANCE 19-192

3
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 4

AMENDING TITLE 10, CHAPTER 10.02.100 RELEASE OF MOTOR 5
VEHICLE - COSTS6

7
WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement; 8
and,9

10
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole seeks comparable costs as to our neighboring communities;11
and,12

13
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 14
requirements of the City and to provide clarification as needed.15

16
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole:17

18
Section 1. This ordinance is of permanent nature and shall be codified in the North Pole Code of 19
Ordinances.20

21
Section 2. General provisions of the North Pole Municipal Code of Ordinances are amended as 22
follows by inserting the text underlined and in red, and removing the language that has been 23
stricken.24

25
A violation of AS 28.35.030, AS 28.35.032, AS 28.15.291 and Section 10.02.160 of this chapter 26
must be brought in the forum of the civil action.27

28
10.02.100 Release of Motor Vehicle - Costs.29

30
A. A vehicle under this section may be released upon proof of ownership of the vehicle, 31

payment of towing and storage fees, including the administrative fee of $384 (three 32
hundred eighty-four dollars) to offset the City’s processing costs.33

a. $500 (five hundred dollars) for the first offense.34
b. $750 (seven hundred fifty dollars) for the second offense.35
c. $1000 (one thousand dollars) for the third offense.36

B. Impound towing fees have been set at $130 (one hundred thirty dollars) for 37
impound/towing. Daily impound fees are set at $30 (thirty dollars) per day. Certified 38
letter notification fee is $75 (seventy-five dollars) and a one-time security fee is set at $65 39
(sixty-five dollars). Item recovery fees are set at $50 (fifty dollars) per visit.40

41
42
43

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 69 of 73



Sponsored by: Mayor Michael W. Welch & Council Member Walley
Introduced: October 07, 2019

2

Section 3. Effective date.44
This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on the first City business day following its 45
adoption.46

47
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 48
_____ day of _____, 2019.49

50
51

_____________________________52
Michael W. Welch, Mayor53

ATTEST:54
55
56

________________________________57
Judy L. Binkley, City Clerk58

59
60 PASSED/FAILED

Yes: 
No:
Absent:

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 70 of 73



Michael W. Miller

DOB – August 7, 1951, Fairbanks, Alaska

Political Experience:

Leadership: Senate President (1997-1998)
                    Commissioner of Administration, State of Alaska (2003-2004)

Election History: City of North Pole Council (1976-1980)
                             Alaska State House (1982-1992)
                             Alaska State Senate (1992-2000)

Community Activities: Original Board Member of Project 714 (STARS), 
Drug Intervention and Prevention Program for Secondary Schools; Past Board 
Member of Crisis Pregnancy Outpost for North Pole/Fairbanks area; Member, 
National Federation of Independent Business (NFIB).

Education:  Monroe Catholic High School, Fairbanks
                    Attended University of Alaska, Fairbanks, 1970-1974

Occupation:  President/Owner, Santa Claus House

Work History:  President/CEO, SCH, Inc. 1966 – Present, North Pole, AK
                         Commissioner of Administration, State of Alaska (2003-2004) 
Juneau
                        Alaska State Legislator, State of Alaska, 1982-2000, Juneau

                          Warehouseman, Trans Alaska Pipeline, 1974-1978, Fairbanks

Military Service: Alaska Air National Guard (1971-1974)

Birth: 8/7/51; Fairbanks, AK – Life-long Alaskan

Family: Wife-Susan-married 44 years, Anniversary-12/27/74  

Children – Teffonie, Son-in-Law – Phillip (5 Children)
                   Carissa, Son-in-Law – Paul (3 Children)

Hobbies: Coin collecting, history, antiquing, family gatherings, 
grandchildren.

City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 71 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 72 of 73



City Council Agenda Packet - October 07, 2019 73 of 73


	Agenda
	09.16.2019 Minutes
	Proclamation
	NB(a): JAG Grant
	NB(b): Heating Fuel Contract
	NB(c): SHSP Grant
	NB(e) Ice Rink Fund
	NB(f): Ord 19-18
	NB(g): Ord 19-19
	NB(h): IGU Appointment
	NB(i): Planning Commission Appointment



